
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

TUESDAY, JANUARY 5, 2017
8:30 A.M. 

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery
Jennifer Brinkman

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget & Fiscal Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on January 4, 2017.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:39
a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 20, 2016 STAFF
MEETING

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Amundson seconded approval of the December 20,
2016 Staff Meeting minutes.  Wiltgen, Brinkman and Amundson voted
yes.  Avery and Schorr were absent.  Motion carried 3-0. 

Avery arrived at the meeting at 8:41 a.m.

 2 A) NEBRASKA CRIME COMMISSION GRANT APPLICATIONS; B)
HUMAN SERVICES ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT HOURS;
AND C) COUNTY VITAL SIGNS CONTRIBUTION - Sara Hoyle,
Human Services Director; Becky Steiner, Juvenile Justice Coordinator

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



A) Nebraska Crime Commission Grant Applications

Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, gave an overview of Lancaster County Crime
Commission Funding, Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (Exhibit A). 

Becky Steiner, Juvenile Justice Coordinator, said three of programs they are seeking
funding for are new this year: Asian Community and Cultural Center (ACCC) Youth
Program, KIN-NECT, and Community First Team.

Hoyle requested authorization to submit the grant applications, noting all of the match
will be in-kind. 

Wiltgen asked whether there are any new data requirements.  Hoyle said there are not. 

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Brinkman seconded to authorize the Chair to sign all
of the grant applications for 2017-2018.  Avery, Wiltgen, Brinkman and
Amundson voted yes.  Schorr was absent.  Motion carried 4-0. 

B) Human Services Administrative Assistant Hours

Hoyle said she would like to increase the hours for Jenny Ryan, Administrative
Assistant, from 30 to 40 per week because she has assumed additional duties and
responsibilities.  NOTE: Ryan is already receiving full benefits.  She estimated the
difference at $11,000 annually and said it would be covered through the Community
Aid grant.  Hoyle said she can submit a subgrant adjustment request to fund the
additional hours through the end of the current fiscal year, explaining the new grant
will pick up the funding beginning July 1, 2017. 

MOTION: Brinkman moved and Wiltgen seconded to approve increasing the Human
Services Administrative Assistant’s hours from 30 to 40 hours per week. 
Wiltgen, Brinkman, Avery and Amundson voted yes.  Schorr was absent. 
Motion carried 4-0.

C) County Vital Signs Contribution

NOTE: Lincoln Vital Signs was a study that looked at the needs of the community as a
whole. 

Schorr arrived at the meeting at 8:49 a.m.

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



Hoyle said the County contributed $1,000 to development of the last report and is
being asked to contribute a like amount to release the 2017 Supplemental Report.  The
Lincoln Vital Signs reports are available on the following website:
http://www.lincolnvitalsigns.org/reports.php.
 
MOTION: Brinkman moved and Wiltgen seconded to contribute $1,000 to the 2017

Lincoln Vital Signs report.  Schorr, Brinkman, Avery, Wiltgen and
Amundson voted yes.  Motion carried 5-0.

 3 A) SHERIFF’S VEHICLE PURCHASE MODIFICATION; B)
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF KEARNEY POLICE
DEPARTMENT FOR USE OF SCANNERS; AND C) GRANT
APPLICATION TO BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE (BJA)
($700,000) - Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff; Todd Duncan,
Chief Deputy Sheriff; Sergeant John Vik, Lancaster Sheriff’s Office (LSO)

A) Sheriff’s Vehicle Purchase Modification

Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, said the Board approved seven new Ford
Interceptor vehicles in the budget and said six have been ordered.  He said the
Highway Interdiction Unit would like a Chevrolet Tahoe, which is a larger vehicle, for
their duties.  Wagner said the difference in cost would be $9,400 and said it could be
covered by forfeiture asset funds.

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Avery seconded approval of the request.  

Wiltgen requested the Forfeiture Fund balance.  Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal
Officer, said he could check the balance and provide that information to the Board. 

Brinkman asked Wagner whether he is permitted to use forfeited assets for
expenditures outside of the department.  Wagner explained they can be used for other
law enforcement agencies, providing strict guidelines are met.

ROLL CALL: Brinkman, Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr and Amundson voted yes.  Motion
carried 5-0.

B) Interlocal Agreement with City of Kearney Police Department for Use of
Scanners

Wagner said the Lancaster County Sheriff’s Office (LSO) and City of Kearney Police
Department both have 3D laser printers.  He said the equipment must have routine
preventive maintenance (calibration) each year and the two departments would like to

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



enter into interlocal agreement that would allow each to borrow the other department’s
scanner, if needed, while their scanner is being serviced.

The interlocal agreement will be scheduled on the January 10, 2017 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.

C) Grant Application to Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) ($700,000)

Todd Duncan, Chief Deputy Sheriff, said LSO is partnering with Concise Research
Group, for development of software that will allow LSO to conduct surveys with the
public about law enforcement community relations and satisfaction with LSO’s services. 
A second tier of software will allow LSO to conduct internal surveys with its employees
to measure its climate, culture, and employee engagement.  He said they would like to
apply for a Bureau of Justice (BJA) grant, explaining the funds would be used to
develop and implement evidence-based, data-driven practices to reduce crime and
violence in Lancaster County.  Duncan said they are seeking up to $700,000, noting no
match is required for the grant.

Amundson exited the meeting at 8:57 a.m.

Schorr suggested other County departments might be interested in surveying their
clientele or employees.  

Wiltgen asked who is the end beneficiary for the grant application.  Duncan said the
County would be the primary recipient and a portion would go to Concise Research
Group for their services.  He added Concise Research Group has met with other local
law enforcement agencies and is trying to establish partnerships with them as well.

Amundson returned to the meeting at 9:00 a.m.

Brinkman suggested consideration be given to who would own the data and whether
Concise Research Group could make the survey results public without LSO’s approval.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Brinkman seconded to authorize the Lancaster County
Sheriff’s Office (LSO) to submit the grant application.  Avery, Wiltgen,
Schorr, Brinkman and Amundson voted yes.  Motion carried 5-0.

 4 JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (RESTORE PROJECT) - Sara Hoyle,
Human Services Director; Bruce Prenda, Chief Deputy County Attorney,
Juvenile Division

Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, said the County received a $100,000 Justice
Assistance grant from the Nebraska Crime Commission for the RESTORE Project (arrest
school-based diversion program).  She said the intent was to target the

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



disproportionate number of African-American youth entering the juvenile justice system
as a result of things that were happening in school.  Hoyle said, when the data was
evaluated, it was determined that the program was not effective primarily because the
youth who were identified, 16 to 17 year-olds, were getting into trouble at an earlier
age.  She said they would like to target younger kids, 14 to 15 year-olds, and said the
grant will allow them to hire someone to specialize in that age range and to provide
case management.  Hoyle said the grant also assists with adoption of cases from the
City Attorney’s Office.

Bruce Prenda, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Juvenile Division, said the County
Attorney’s Office has worked with the City Attorney’s Office to consolidate law
enforcement referrals.  He said all law enforcement referrals will now be sent to the
County Attorney’s Office for processing, except for violations under City ordinance that
are not covered by state statutes.  Prenda noted there were a small number of cases
were not referred by the City to Juvenile Diversion until the end of December that will
still have to go through the City Attorney’s Office.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to authorize the Chair to sign the
grant award.  Wiltgen, Schorr, Brinkman, Avery and Amundson voted yes. 
Motion carried 5-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Chief Deputy Elected Official Salaries

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, explained the salaries of the elected officials
for the 2015-2018 term of office were established by the Board in 2014 (see County
Resolution No. R-14-0004), based on recommendations from the Lancaster County
Elected Officials Salary Review Committee.  Most elected officials also received a market
adjustment this year.  He said the elected officials have submitted salary
recommendations for their chief deputies for 2017 (see agenda packet), noting most
are recommending 95% of the elected official’s salary which has been the practice.  In
some cases, that would result in increases of 7% to 8%   NOTE: Nebraska Revised
Statute §23-1114.09 states the salary of one full-time deputy shall not be less than
65% of the county officer’s salary.

Brinkman noted that some of the chief deputy salary recommendations reflect 6% and
8% increases.  Meyer explained those are based off the market adjustments.  

Brinkman requested an expanded spreadsheet that shows the following: 1) Elected
officials’ 2017 salaries; 2) Percentage of increase; 3) Chief deputy elected officials’ 2016
salaries; 4) Proposed 2017 chief deputy salaries; 5) Percentage of increase; and 6)
Percentage of respective elected official’s salary.  That information was provided
following the meeting (see Exhibit B).

NOTE: Further discussion was held later in the meeting.

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



C. Management Team Meeting Agenda and Date

There was consensus to schedule the meeting on January 12th at 7:30 a.m.  The
following items were scheduled on the agenda: 1) Introduction of Commissioner
Brinkman; 2) Performance survey; and 3) Roundtable discussion.

Wiltgen asked that staff send an Outlook (email and calendar service) invitation to
Commissioners.

D. County Board Photograph (January 10, 2017)

Informational only.

E. 2017 Food Bank Drive (Kickoff on June 6, 2017 at Lancaster County
Extension Office, 444 Cherrycreek Road)

Informational only.

F. Employee Recognition Breakfast (Tuesday, May 23, 2017, 7:30 a.m. at
Windsor Stables, 1024 L Street)

There was consensus to hold the event on Thursday, May 25, 2017, instead.

G. Microcomputer Request No. 154640 from Juvenile Probation, $2,084
for Two (2) PC’s and Two (2) Monitors

Information regarding the request was disseminated (Exhibit C).

Wiltgen inquired about the Microcomputer Fund balance.  Meyer estimated it at $8,000.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to approve the request with funding
through Juvenile Probation’s budget.  Wiltgen, Schorr, Brinkman and
Amundson voted yes.  Avery voted no.  Motion carried 4-1.

 5 REVIEW OF HEALTH AND DENTAL PLANS - Tracy Krause, Account
Executive, AON Risk Solutions; Doug McDaniel, Human Resources
Director; Paula Lueders, County Benefits Specialist; Bill Kostner, City Risk
Manager

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



Tracy Krause, Account Executive, AON Risk Solutions, gave an overview of Lancaster
County, 3rd Quarter Experience Summary and Cost Review, Plan Year January 1, 2016
through December 31, 2016; Experience through September 30, 2016 (Exhibit D),
noting the following:

Medical and Rx (Prescription) Report

• There are 7,350 members enrolled in the plan.
• Blue Cross and Blue shield of Nebraska (BCBSNE) was paid a total of

$869,713 year-to-date to process claims for the County which includes
$324,954 in administration fees and $538,608 for stop loss coverage
(protection for claims paid over $200,000).

• Medical claims totaled $5,059,691.
• Pharmacy claims totaled $1,615,524. 

Krause said pharmacy represents 24% of paid claims (the average is between 17-20%). 

• Total gross paid claims were $6,675,215. 
• Claims over the specific stop loss amount totaled $336,186.
• Total net paid claims were $6,339,029.
• The loss ratio for medical and pharmacy was 78.1%.

Large Claims Report

• There are five claimants that have claims over $100,000 (50%) of the
specific deductible.

• Two claimants have breached the $200,000 stop loss amount.
• The five claimants represent 16.8% of total claims.

Dental Report

• There are 7,127 members enrolled in the plan.
• Ameritas was paid a total of $31,859 year-to-date to process dental

claims for the County.
• Dental claims total $397,988.
• Total plan costs year-to-date are $$429,847.

In response to a question from Brinkman, Krause said Lancaster County is doing well
and has made appropriate changes to reduce costs. 

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

I. Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Update

Eagan noted the Board directed Jim Davidsaver, Emergency Management Director, and
Don Killeen, County Property Manager, to find an architectural firm to assist them with
design requirements and evaluating potential facilities (see December 8, 2016 Staff
Meeting minutes).  He said the Lincoln Electric System (LES) has indicated it plans to
use its Operations Center at 2620 Fairfield through 2021 so that is not a viable option.  
Eagan said the former Staff Security Facility at the Youth Services Center (YSC), 1200
Radcliff Street, may have potential and will be assessed further.  The Municipal Services
Center, 949 West Bond Street, is another possibility but renovation costs would be
significant.

Amundson questioned whether it would be wise to locate the EOC with the juvenile
detention center.  There following factors were noted: 1) YSC is a County-owned
facility; 2) The building is hardened; 3) The EOC would have a separate entrance; and
4) There is adequate parking.  

Brinkman asked whether consideration was given to locating the EOC in the proposed
fire station on North 24th Street, near Campbell Elementary School.  Eagan said that
would have been an ideal solution but the City indicated their plans were too far
advanced to accommodate the EOC.

Brinkman exited the meeting at 9:53 a.m.

 6 A) UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE SALARIES; AND B) DEPUTY
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER CLASS DESCRIPTION - Doug
McDaniel, Human Resources Director; Nicole Gross and Amy Sadler,
Compensation Technicians; Kristi Bauer, Deputy County Attorney

B) Deputy Chief Administrative Officer Class Description

Copies of the class description were disseminated (Exhibit E).

Brinkman returned to the meeting at 9:56 a.m.

Doug McDaniel, Human Resources Director, said the class description was updated in
September, 2015 with input from Gwen Thorpe, who held the position at that time. 
NOTE: Thorpe has since retired.  He said he was asked by the Chair to research similar
positions in neighboring counties and said he emailed that information to the Chair and
Vice Chair.  McDaniel said there appears to be a desire by Board members to expand
the role but said some of the proposed duties may not be of the same “job family.”

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



Schorr disseminated copies of her proposed revisions to the class description (Exhibit
F).  She felt some of the existing duties, such as Health Insurance Portability &
Accountability Act (HIPAA) Coordinator and Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
(EEOC) Compliance Officer, could be assigned to other staff.  Eagan said those have
significant responsibilities.  

Schorr said she also eliminated any reference to Information Services (IS) or TRIM, an
electronic document and records management system now known as Hewlett Packard
Records Manager (HPRM), as the County has hired an Records Administrator.

Amundson felt the relationship to the Chief Administrative Officer, should be clarified. 
Eagan said, while “on paper” the position serves as his deputy, he is not responsible for
evaluating that individual.  McDaniel added the Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
collaborates with the Chief Administrative Officer but reports directly to the Board.

There was consensus to hold the item for two weeks.

A) Unclassified Employee Salaries

McDaniel presented the Appointed Officials Salary Survey 2017, noting five counties
were surveyed (Exhibit G).  He also presented Appointed Salary Information 2017
(current salary and possible percentage increases) and Salary Information 2017 (salary
information for the Bailiffs, Child Support referee and the District Court Judges’ Law
Clerks) (Exhibit H).

In response to a question from Brinkman, McDaniel said appointed directors do not
receive merit increases, with the exception of the salary increase that was given to Kim
Etherton, Community Corrections Director, last year.  Schorr said that increase was
based on additional duties.

Eagan said directors are also technically subject to comparability rules.  Brinkman asked
whether any positions are not meeting comparability.  McDaniel referred to Exhibit G
and said the Commission of Industrial Relations (CIR) focuses on the maximums.  He
said almost all positions are below market.  One position, Community Corrections
Director, is above market.

It was noted the classified unrepresented employees and excluded employees received
a 2.5% cost-of-living adjustment.  Represented employees received the following
increases: American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees (AFSCME)
General- 2.5%; AFSCME Engineering - 2.25%; Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), Lodge
32 (Corrections) - 2.5%; Lancaster County Deputy Sheriff’s Association FOP, Lodge 29 -
2.25%; FOP, Lodge 77 (Juvenile Detention Officers) - 2.5%.

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to authorize a 2.5% increase for the
unclassified employees for 2017.  Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr, Brinkman and
Amundson voted yes.  Motion carried 5-0.

NOTE: The Board will take formal action to approve the salary increase at the January
10, 2017 County Board of Commissioners Meeting. 

B) Deputy Chief Administrative Officer Class Description

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

RETURNING TO ITEM 9A

The following information was disseminated (Exhibit I): 1) Elected officials’ salaries for
2017; 2) Final Report and Recommendations, Elected Officials Salary and Review
Committee, December 19, 2013; 3) County Resolution No. R-14-004 in the matter of
setting salaries for elected county officials for the 2015-2018 term; and 4) Consumer
Price Index-All Urban Consumers for 2014, 2015 and 2016.

Troy Hawk, Clerk of the District Court; Dan Nolte, County Clerk; Terry Wagner, County
Sheriff, and discussed their rationale in making salary recommendations for their chief
deputies.  Wagner stated one of his concerns is compression of his chief deputy’s salary
with subordinates.  

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, appeared and said she is required by state statues to
appoint a County Surveyor and said their defined duties are very different.  Her
recommendation that the County Surveyor’s salary be set at 80% of her salary was
based on an comparison with Douglas and Sarpy County and a review of wages within
her organization.

Brinkman said she is concerned about the continued escalation in salaries without
having a discussion and an examination about how the Board makes those decisions.

Schorr suggested phasing-in the larger chief deputy salary increases over the next two
years.

The item was tabled for further information

The meeting was recessed at 10:41 a.m. and was resumed at 10:49 a.m.

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



 7 A) NEW VERIZON CONTRACT RATES; AND B) 605 BUILDING
FURNITURE  - Bob Walla, Purchasing Agent; Kelli Zavala, Verizon

A) New Verizon Contract Rates

Bob Walla, Purchasing Agent, discussed the 2016 Verizon Wireless Audit Report and
2017 Verizon Voice and Data Plans for the City of Lincoln/Lancaster County (Exhibit J). 
He said the audit identified a number of areas where there could be efficiencies and
reduced costs.  One way would be to limit the number of plans (four voice plans and
one data plan).  Walla estimated a total combined savings of $90,000 a year.

Wiltgen requested a copy of the report referenced in Exhibit J showing the number of
phones and data devices indicating zero usage over a six month period.  Pam Dingman,
County Engineer, appeared and said her department uses tablets and mobile “hot
spots” rather than cellular phones.  She said the devices are kept active in the event of
an emergency and urged caution in evaluating overall use of devices.

Avery felt other contracts would benefit from an audit.  Walla said that is why he is
seeking to add a contract administrator to his staff.  There was consensus to have the
Chair and Vice Chair discuss the position with the Mayor (the cost would be split with
the City).  Walla will provide information to the Board by next week on the cost.

B) 605 Building Furniture

Schorr noted a delay of three to four weeks has been requested to further review costs
and said a meeting is scheduled on January 9th with representatives of the County
Attorney’s Office, Adult Probation, Juvenile Probation and Community Corrections to
discuss alternate products.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

J. Reform Nebraska

Amundson said she has accepted an invitation to join Reform for Nebraska’s Future, a
coalition calling for property tax reductions. 

K. Invitation to the Board from Pastor Tom Barber, People’s City Mission

Amundson said the Board has received an invitation to tour the new Curtis Center, a
transitional housing facility, 110 Q Street, and share a meal.  Amundson said she will
ask Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, to prepare a memorandum about
the need for transitional housing for post-adjudicated individuals. 

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



L. One Month Extension of Visitors Improvement Fund Contract with
Board of Regents (Parasitology)

There was consensus to schedule the item on the January 10, 2017 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda. 

 8 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 9 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Chief Deputy Elected Official Salaries

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

B. Committee Assignments and Officers

MOTION: Schorr moved and Avery seconded to appoint Todd Wiltgen as Chair for
2017-2018.  Schorr, Brinkman, Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson voted yes. 
Motion carried 5-0.

MOTION: Amundson moved and Schorr seconded to appoint Bill Avery as Vice Chair
for 2017.  Brinkman, Wiltgen, Schorr Avery and Amundson voted yes. 
Motion carried 5-0.

NOTE: The Board will take formal action to appoint officers at the January 10, 2017
County Board of Commissioners Meeting. 

The Board reviewed the list of committee assignments and Lancaster County Board
Committee Assignment Options (Exhibit K).  There was consensus to eliminate the
following assignments: 1) Air Pollution Control Advisory Board; and 2) Budget
Monitoring Committee.

There was consensus to assign committees as follows:

Schorr - Board of Corrections (Chair); District Energy Corporation (DEC); Human
Services Joint Budget Committee (JBC); Nebraska Association of County Officials
(NACO) Board of Directors (Executive Committee); Railroad Transportation & Safety
District (RTSD) (Chair); Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

Avery - Board of Corrections (Vice Chair); Board of Equalization (BOE) (Vice Chair);
District Energy Corporation (DEC); Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public
Agency (JPA); Lincoln-Lancaster County Board of Health; Lancaster County Mental
Health Crisis Center Advisory Committee; Monthly Meeting of County Board Chair, Vice

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



Chair and Mayor; Monthly Meeting of County Board Chair, Vice Chair and Planning
Department; Lincoln Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Officials Committee;
Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC)

Wiltgen - Board of Equalization (BOE) (Chair); Chamber Coffee; General Assistance
(GA) Monitoring Committee; Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC); Lancaster
County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA); Lancaster County Fairgrounds
Joint Public Agency (JPA) (Chair); Monthly Meeting of County Board Chair, Vice Chair
and Mayor; Monthly Meeting of County Board Chair, Vice Chair and Planning
Department; Lincoln Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Officials Committee;
Region V Systems and Region V Services Governing Boards; Railroad Transportation &
Safety District (RTSD)

Brinkman - Emergency Medical Services Oversight Authority (EMSOA); Human Services
Joint Budget Committee (JBC); Lincoln Partnership for Economic Development (LPED)
Investors; Public Building Commission (PBC); Railroad Transportation & Safety District
(RTSD)

Amundson - Chamber Coffee; Juvenile Justice Review Committee (JJRC); Lancaster
County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (JPA); Lincoln Independent Business
Association (LIBA) Budget Monitoring Committee; Public Building Commission (PBC)
(Vice Chair); Monthly Meeting of Public Building Commission (PBC) Chair, Vice Chair
and Mayor; Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Board of Directors

It was suggested the BOE only meet every other week.  There was consensus to
consult the County Treasurer’s Office, County Assessor’s Office and the County Clerk’s
Office.

There was also a suggestion to remove the land lines in the County Board’s Office and
Minette Genuchi, Administrative Assistant to the County Board, was asked to check on
costs.

C. Management Team Meeting Agenda and Date
D. County Board Photograph (January 10, 2017)
E. 2017 Food Bank Drive (Kickoff on June 6, 2017 at Lancaster County

Extension Office, 444 Cherrycreek Road)
F. Employee Recognition Breakfast (Tuesday, May 23, 2017, 7:30 a.m. at

Windsor Stables, 1024 L Street)
G. Microcomputer Request No. 154640 from Juvenile Probation, $2,084

for Two (2) PC’s and Two (2) Monitors

Items C-G were moved forward on the agenda.

Page 13 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



H. Prudential Investment Review (February 23, 2017)

Informational only.

I. Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Update
J. Reform Nebraska
K. Invitation to the Board from Pastor Tom Barber, People’s City Mission
L. One Month Extension of Visitors Improvement Fund Contract with

Board of Regents (Parasitology)

Items I-L were moved forward on the agenda.

10 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Wiltgen

Wiltgen said new computers will have Microsoft Office 365 and Windows 10 will be the
standard operating system.  He said they are still looking at different payroll systems
and intend to move to cloud management for the Geographic Information System
(GIS).

Brinkman asked if there are any plans to update the website as it is not user friendly. 
Wiltgen said the City does not want to spend the money to do so.  Schorr suggested
consideration be given to using Keno Funds.

B. Public Building Commission (PBC) Chair Meeting with Mayor -
Amundson

Amundson said renovation of the 605 Building is on schedule.  She also reported that 
State tenants in the 233 Building will be given a one-year notice to vacate the building
and said Information Services (IS) plans to move out of the building by November 30th. 
Amundson also reported the south parking lot is crowded so private parking will be
eliminated.  A strategic planning session on parking is also planned.

C. County Board Chair/Vice Chair Meeting with Mayor -
Amundson/Wiltgen

Amundson said they discussed relocation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC),
the need for a turn lane on North 84 Street and Havelock Avenue, and the Lincoln-
Lancaster County 2040 Comprehensive Plan (LPlan 2040) and 2040 Long Range
Transportation Plan (LRTP) updates. 

D. General Assistance (GA) Monitoring Committee Meeting - Wiltgen

Wiltgen said there are still issues with Medicaid reimbursement.

Page 14 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017



E. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson

See Item 10B.

F. Board of Health - Avery

Avery said he did not attend the meeting.

G. Mental Health Crisis Center Advisory Board - Avery

Meeting was cancelled.

H. Chamber Coffee - Amundson 

Amundson said a variety of topics were discussed, including tourism, the upcoming City
elections, and the University of Nebraska-Lincoln (UNL) graduate retention rate.

11 DISCUSSION OF OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED

A. Meeting with Senator Bob Krist (Amundson and Avery)

Amundson and Avery said they discussed the Youth Services Center (YSC) per diem,
transportation issues, and the National Juvenile Detention Alternatives Initiative (JDAI). 
Wiltgen noted State Probation has not responded to the Board’s letter on the
transportation issue and the County is currently operating without a contract with the
State. 

12 EMERGENCY ITEMS

There were no emergency items.

13 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Avery seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:14 p.m. 
Brinkman, Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr and Amundson voted yes.  Motion
carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 15 BOC/STAFF/01/05/2017
































































